
MEETING AGENDA 
Del Norte Local Agency Formation Commission 
MARCH 24, 2025 REGULAR MEETING - 4:00 PM 

Del Norte County Board of Supervisors Chambers 
Flynn Center - 981 H St. Crescent City, CA 95531 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call/ Commission Introductions & Appointments

A. Pledge of Allegiance

B. Commissioner Introductions & Appointments

C. Certificate of Recognition: Former City Member Blake Inscore

D. Chair and Vice-Chair Appointments for 2025

2. Consent Calendar

A. Draft Minutes for September 30, 2024 (ATTACHMENT 2A)
B. 2025 Meeting Dates (ATTACHMENT 2B)

3. Public Hearings

A. FY 2025-26 Draft Budget (ATTACHMENT 3A)

4. Regular Business

A. FY 2024-25 Mid-Year Budget Review (ATTACHMENT 4A)
B. MSR/SOI Compliance Work Plan (ATTACHMENT 4B)
C. Current and Future Applications (ATTACHMENT 4C)

5. Inquiries, Correspondence, Application Status and Referrals

A. Staff - The Executive Officer will provide a report of current projects, issues of 
interest, and pending legislation.
• Klamath FPD Fire Services Planning
• Legislative & CALAFCO Update (Letter to Commission)

B. Commission - On their own initiative, Commission members may make brief 
announcements or reports on their own activities. They may ask questions for 
clarification, make a referral to staff or request a business matter for a future 
agenda per Government Code Section 54954.2 (a).

C. Public - Public comment on items of interest within LAFCo subject matter 
jurisdiction, and not otherwise appearing on the agenda.  No action may be 
taken on any item not appearing on the agenda.

6. Adjournment
Next Meeting: June 2, 2025 (special meeting due to Memorial Day holiday).  



DRAFT MINUTES 
Del Norte Local Agency Formation Commission 

REGULAR MEETING 
In Person: Del Norte County Board of Supervisors Chambers 

Flynn Center - 981 H St. Crescent City, CA 95531 
September 30, 2024, 4:00 PM 

Members present: Blake Inscore (City Member & Chair), Dean Wilson (County 
Member & Vice Chair), Darrin Short (County Member), Lyle Armstrong (Public 
Member)  and Donna DeWolf (Alternate Public Member)  

Members absent: Jason Greenough (City Member), 

Others present: George Williamson (Executive Officer), Jim Underwood, Legal 
Counsel; Geoff Antill, Elaine Fallgren & other district representatives (Smith River 
FPD), John Rigers ( Smith River Cemetery District..  

1. Call to Order/Roll Call
Commission Chair Inscore called the meeting to order at 4:00  p.m.. Roll call was 
taken.: Commissioners Inscore, Wilson, Short, Lyle Armstrong.

A. Commissioner Inscore led the Pledge of Allegiance

2. Public Hearings

A. Smith River FPD Annexation Hearing

Staff presented the Smith River Fire Protection District (“Smith River FPD” or 
“District”) annexation of approximately 972 acres (73 parcels) application to 
the Commission. located outside the District boundaries, but within its adopted 
Sphere of Influence..

There is a Property Tax Revenue Sharing Agreement, between Smith River 
FPD and the County of Del Norte, approved by Del Norte County Board of 
Supervisors Resolution No. 2024-025 per Revenue and Tax Code §99 and
§99.01. County property tax for land within the proposed annexation territory 
are to be equally split . These taxes are already collected by the County and 
would not result in new or increased property tax for land in the proposed 
annexation area. 

Discussion 

Commission Chair Inscore opened the public hearing, District representative 
Geoff Antill, addressed the Commission, reviewing the annexation process . 

There were no protest received prior to or during the hearing. 



Del Norte Local Agency Formation Commission 
REGULAR MEETING 

September 30, 2024, 4:00 pm 

2 

On a motion by Commissioner Short, seconded by Commissioner Wilson and 
carried by a 4 - 0 vote, the Commission approved the annexation by 
Resolution 24-05, and waived the protest proceedings. 

B. Smith River CSD MSR/SOI Update

Staff presented the updated MSR/SOI, including the following: Correcting 
differences between the Tax Rate Area (TRA) boundaries on file with California 
State Board of Equalization (BOE) and the boundary on file with the District. 
District integration of all five pump stations into a SCADA system, with meters 
being replaced with advanced metering infrastructure (AMI); the billing system 
has been upgraded: District is in the process of acquiring an emergency 
generator; service rate increase: conducting a customer cost analysis. 

Discussion 

On a motion by Commissioner Short, seconded by Commissioner Wilson 
and carried by a 4 - 0 vote, the Commission approved the MSR/SOI Update 
by Resolution 24-06, 

3. Regular Business

A. Draft June 3, 2024, Minutes
On a motion by Commissioner Short, seconded by Commissioner Wilson and 
carried by a 4 - 0 vote, the Commission approved the June 3, 2024, Minutes, 

B. FY 2023-24 Budget Review
Staff presented the 2023-2024 final budget
This was an informational Item, no action required.

C. MSR / SOI FY 2024-25 Compliance Work Plan
Staff presented the FY 2024-25 MSR / SOI Compliance Work Plan
This was an informational Item, no action required.

D. Del Norte County Fair Recreation & Park District – Municipal Services Review
Determination Reconsideration Update

Staff presented a MSR Determination Reconsideration Update. DNCFRPD 
formation included a condition (#3) creating a reserve sales tax fund until tax no 
longer being collected. The 2020 MSR, included a determination that a Post 
Sales Tax Fairgrounds Use Funding Program be prepared to support the 
proposed release of sales tax reserve funds, which can be done at the same 
time as Condition # 3 removal consideration. Both are contingent on a Post 
Sales Tax Fairgrounds Use Funding Program, jointly prepared by DNCFRPD & 
41st DAA Board, based on an updated Del Norte County Fairgrounds Facility 5-
year Capital Improvement Program and long term funding provisions. 



Del Norte Local Agency Formation Commission 
REGULAR MEETING 

September 30, 2024, 4:00 pm 

3 

Several Commissioners commented on the importance of keeping the fair going. 
This was an informational Item, no action required.  

4. Inquiries, Correspondence, Application Status and Referrals

A. Staff - The Executive Officer will provide a report of current projects, issues of
interest, and pending legislation.
• Klamath FPD Fire Services Planning.  The Commission received a

Klamath FPD Fire Services update, including Fire Station improvements; &
funding.

• Legislative Update.  The Commission received an update on SB 1240
recently signed by Governor Newsome.

• Application Status.  The Commission received an update on pending &
future applications, including studies

B. Commission - On their own initiative, Commission members may make brief
announcements or reports on their own activities. They may ask questions for
clarification, make a referral to staff or request a business matter for a future
agenda per Government Code Section 54954.2 (a).

C. Public - Public comment on items of interest within LAFCo subject matter
jurisdiction, and not otherwise appearing on the agenda.  No action may be
taken on any item not appearing on the agenda.   The Commission received
testimony regarding special districts  from community member Alicia Williams

5. Adjournment
The meeting was adjourned at 5:06 PM. The Next Meeting scheduled for November
25, 2024, unless there is an alternate date scheduled.



DEL NORTE LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
670 9th Street, Suite 202 
Arcata, California 95521 

TEL (707) 825-9301 FAX (707)825-9181 
eo@delnortelafco.org 

AGENDA ITEM 2B 

MEETING DATE: March 24, 2025 

TO: Del Norte Local Agency Formation Commission 

FROM: George Williamson AICP, Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: Calendar Year – 2025 – Regular & Special Meeting Dates 

DISCUSSION 

The Commission generally meets on the fourth Monday of every other month, unless 
rescheduled due to holidays or other considerations. The Calendar Year 2025 meeting 
dates are listed below. 

March 24, 2025 Regular Meeting  - Draft Budget 

June 2, 2025   Special Meeting (due to holiday)  Final Budget 

July 28, 2025 –  Regular Meeting  

September 22, 2025-- Regular Meeting - 

November 24, 2025 - Regular Meeting (may change due to holiday) 

mailto:eo@delnortelafco.org


DEL NORTE LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
 670 9th Street, Suite 202 
Arcata, California 95521 

TEL (707) 825-9301 FAX (707)825-9181 
eo@delnortelafco.org 

AGENDA ITEM 3A 

MEETING DATE: March 24, 2025 

TO:  Del Norte Local Agency Formation Commission 

FROM: George Williamson AICP, Executive Officer 

SUBJECT:  FY 2025-26 Draft Budget 

DISCUSSION 

The Commission will consider a Draft FY 2025-26 budget at a public hearing held on 
March 24, 2025. The budget is proposed to increase by less than 3%. The following 
changes are proposed:  

• Insurance: Increasing from $3,800.00 to $4,100.00

• CALAFCO Membership: Increasing from $1,603.00 to $1,656.00

• Professional Services (MSR/SOI Preparation): Increasing from $30,000.00 to $31,500.00

• Professional Services (Legal Counsel) Increasing $8,500.00 to $9,000.00

• Professional Services (Executive Officer/Admin): increasing from $49,000.00 to
$50,000.00 (includes office lease: (12 months @ $350/month= $4,200.00)

• Travel/Training (CALAFCO Conference): decreasing from $2,000.00 to $1,500.00

Overall expenditures are proposed to increase from $107,303.00 to $110,156.00. City 
and County contributions are proposed to be $49,678.00 each to cover the proposed 
increased expenditures. The contingency fund balance is proposed to stay at 
$10,729.00. 

RECOMMENDATION 

The following procedures are recommended for the Commission’s consideration: 

• Receive verbal report from staff;

• Invite testimony; and

• Discuss item and consider action on the recommendation:

1) Approve Draft FY 2025-2026 Budget and direct staff to distribute to City & County

ATTACHMENTS  

Draft FY 2025-2026 Budget 



Del Norte LAFCo Draft FY 2025-2026 Budget

Account EXPENDITURES Final Yr 2024-25 Draft Yr 2025 -26 

Line # SERVICES & SUPPLIES

20150 Insurance $3,800.00 $4,100.00

20200 CALAFCO Membership $1,603.00 $1,656.00

20221 Printing $50.00 $50.00

20223 Postage $50.00 $50.00

20230 Professional Services 

MSR/SOI Preparation $30,000.00 $31,500.00

Application Processing $10,000.00 $10,000.00

20231 Prof. Serv. Exec. Officer/ Admin. ** $49,000.00 $50,000.00

20232 Prof. Serv. Legal Counsel $8,500.00 $9,000.00
20240 Advertising/Publications $500.00 $500.00

20290 Travel-Training (CALAFCO Board Mtgs/Conference) $2,000.00 $1,500.00

70530 Interfund-Cost Plan ($150/mo budget amount) $1,800.00 $1,800.00

20233 Public Member Stipend (up to 6 mtgs @ $40/mtg) $0.00 $0.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $107,303.00 $110,156.00

** includes Office Lease Space: 12 months @ $350/month

REVENUES
91125 Project Revenue (Application Deposit)* $10,000.00 $10,000.00

90300 Interest $753.00 $800.00

90780 Del Norte County $46,775.00 $49,678.00

90781 City of Crescent City $46,775.00 $49,678.00

07100 Funds from Account #42801007100  (for CALAFCO Board Expenses)$3,000.00 $0.00

TOTAL REVENUES $107,303.00 $110,156.00

Contingency (Unrestricted) Fund
7100 $0.00 $0.00

FUND BALANCE
07100 Account #42801 007 100 $10,729.00 $10,729.00

*Deposit paid by applicants to cover application processing. Projected amount for

auditor use in issuing payment for expense claims.



DEL NORTE LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
670 9th Street, Suite 202 
Arcata, California 95521 

TEL (707) 825-9301 FAX (707)825-9181 
eo@delnortelafco.org 

AGENDA ITEM 4A 

MEETING DATE: March 24, 2025 

TO:  Del Norte Local Agency Formation Commission 

FROM: George Williamson AICP, Executive Officer 

SUBJECT:  FY 2024-25 Mid-Year Cost Accounting 

DISCUSSION 

Overall, Del Norte LAFCo is on track with Quarter 1 and Quarter 2 revenues and expenditures. 
Expenditures are $61,637.04 to date, which is  57% of the budgeted $107,303.00 expenditure 
amount. Revenues thus far are $101,537.00, which is approximately 97% of the budgeted revenue 
amount of $107,303.00.  

RECOMMENDATION 
The following procedures are recommended with respect to the Commission’s consideration 
of this item:   

Review FY 2024-2025 Mid-Year Budget Summary, attached below. 

ATTACHMENTS 
FY 2024-2025 Mid-Year Budget Summary 



Del Norte LAFCo FY 2024-25 Mid-Year Review

Account EXPENDITURES

Final FY 2024-25 

Budget      

Mid-Yr 2024-25 

Budget Amounts 

Line # SERVICES & SUPPLIES

20150 Insurance $3,800.00 $3,714.97

20200 CALAFCO Membership $1,603.00 $1,603.00

20221 Printing $50.00 $0.00

20223 Postage $50.00 $0.00

20230 Professional Services 

MSR/SOI Preparation $30,000.00 $10,851.25

Application Processing $10,000.00 $5,000.00

20231 Prof. Serv. Exec. Officer/ Admin. ** $49,000.00 $35,952.05

20232 Prof. Serv. Legal Counsel $8,500.00 $2,213.00
20240 Advertising/Publications $500.00 $53.81

20290 Travel-Training (CALAFCO Board Mtgs/Conference) $2,000.00 $1,359.96

70530 Interfund-Cost Plan ($150/mo budget amount) $1,800.00 $889.00

20233 Public Member Stipend (up to 6 mtgs @ $40/mtg) $0.00 $0.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $107,303.00 $61,637.04

** includes Office Lease Space: 12 months @ $350/month

REVENUES
91125 Project Revenue (Application Deposit)* $10,000.00 $7,500.00

90300 Interest $753.00 $487.00

90780 Del Norte County $46,775.00 $46,775.00

90781 City of Crescent City $46,775.00 $46,775.00

07100 Funds from Account #42801007100  (for CALAFCO Board Expenses)$3,000.00

TOTAL REVENUES $107,303.00 $101,537.00

Contingency (Unrestricted) Fund
7100

FUND BALANCE
07100 Account #42801 007 100 $10,729.00 $10,729.00

*Deposit paid by applicants to cover application processing. Projected amount for

auditor use in issuing payment for expense claims.



D
EL

 N
O

RT
E 

LO
CA

L 
A

G
EN

CY
 F

O
RM

A
TI

O
N

 C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

 
67

0 
9th

 S
tr

ee
t,

 S
ui

te
 5

 
Ar

ca
ta

, 
Ca

lif
or

ni
a 

95
52

1 
TE

L 
(7

07
) 

82
5-

93
01

 F
AX

 (
70

7)
82

5-
91

81
 

eo
@

de
ln

or
te

la
fc

o.
or

g  

M
un

ic
ip

al
 S

er
vi

ce
 R

ev
ie

w
 (M

SR
) &

 S
ph

er
e 

of
 In

flu
en

ce
 (S

O
I) 

U
pd

at
es

 
C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
W

or
k 

Pr
og

ra
m

 –
 U

pd
at

ed
 M

ar
ch

 2
02

5 

A
ge

nc
y 

N
am

e 
SO

I &
 M

SR
 S

ta
tu

s 
C

on
ta

ct
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
N

ex
t U

pd
at

e 
C

IT
Y 

C
ity

 o
f C

re
sc

en
t C

ity
 

M
SR

 &
 S

O
I A

pp
ro

ve
d 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
19

 
37

7 
J.

 S
t, 

C
re

sc
en

t C
ity

, C
A 

95
53

1;
 E

ric
 W

ie
r; 

C
ity

 M
an

ag
er

; 
(7

07
)4

64
-7

48
3,

 e
w

ie
r@

cr
es

ce
nt

ci
ty

.o
rg

20
25

-2
02

6 

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y 

SE
R

VI
C

E 
D

IS
TR

IC
TS

 

B
er

ts
ch

-O
ce

an
 V

ie
w

 
M

SR
 &

 S
O

I A
pp

ro
ve

d 
Ap

ril
 2

02
0 

84
4 

Ke
lle

r A
ve

, C
re

sc
en

t C
ity

, C
A 

95
53

1;
 C

ha
rli

e 
W

ic
k,

 B
oa

rd
 

Pr
es

id
en

t (
70

7)
 2

18
-7

02
1 

ch
ar

lie
w

ic
k.

10
67

@
gm

ai
l.c

om
  

20
25

 

B
ig

 R
oc

k 
M

SR
 A

pp
ro

ve
d 

N
ov

 2
01

5 
& 

SO
I A

pp
ro

ve
d 

Ap
ril

 2
01

6 
P.

O
. B

ox
 4

53
, C

re
sc

en
t C

ity
, C

A 
95

53
1;

  A
la

n 
Po

rte
ou

s,
 B

oa
rd

 
VP

 a
la

n_
po

rte
ou

s@
m

sn
.c

om
   

(7
07

) 4
58

-9
93

3 
  

20
25

 

C
hu

rc
h 

Tr
ee

 
M

SR
 &

 S
O

I A
pp

ro
ve

d 
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

01
8 

25
1 

C
hu

rc
h 

Tr
ee

 R
d,

 C
re

sc
. C

ity
, C

A 
95

53
1;

 J
im

 N
el

so
n 

Th
eb

al
dh

ea
de

dr
ea

lto
r@

ch
ar

te
r.n

et
 (7

07
) 4

65
-1

75
3 

20
25

 

G
as

qu
et

 
M

SR
 &

 S
O

I A
pp

ro
ve

d 
20

16
 

P.
O

. B
ox

 8
6,

 G
as

qu
et

, C
A 

95
54

3;
 J

oh
n 

An
gs

t, 
G

en
er

al
 

M
an

ag
er

 g
cs

d1
@

ou
tlo

ok
.c

om
 , 

St
ev

e 
Ka

sm
ar

, B
oa

rd
 P

re
si

de
nt

 
bi

gt
un

ac
he

f@
ne

ts
ca

pe
.n

et
  (

70
7)

 4
57

-3
12

4 
 

20
25

 

H
un

te
r V

al
le

y 
M

SR
 &

 S
O

I A
pp

ro
ve

d 
20

22
 

Pa
rt 

of
 S

ou
th

 C
ou

nt
y 

 
25

 D
el

 P
on

te
 D

riv
e,

 K
la

m
at

h 
C

A,
 9

55
48

; P
au

l C
ra

nd
al

l; 
pl

cr
an

da
ll@

hu
gh

es
.n

et
  (

70
7)

 4
82

-0
36

9 
 

20
27

 

H
R

C
 

M
SR

 &
 S

O
I S

ep
t 2

01
8 

En
g 

St
ud

y 
in

 p
ro

ce
ss

 
23

1 
Be

ll 
H

ol
e 

Lo
op

, C
re

sc
en

t C
ity

, C
A 

95
53

1;
 W

es
 W

hi
te

; (
70

7)
 

95
1-

40
59

  h
rc

w
at

er
@

gm
ai

l.c
om

20
25

 

K
la

m
at

h 
M

SR
 &

 S
O

I A
pp

ro
ve

d 
20

22
 

Pa
rt 

of
 S

ou
th

 C
ou

nt
y 

 
P.

O
. B

ox
 4

30
, K

la
m

at
h,

 C
A 

95
54

8;
 M

ar
ga

re
t C

al
dw

el
l M

an
ag

er
 

kl
am

at
hc

sd
@

gm
ai

l.c
om

 (7
07

) 4
82

-0
24

5 
or

 4
82

-1
37

5 
20

27
 

R
ed

w
oo

d 
Pa

rk
 

M
SR

 &
 S

O
I A

pp
ro

ve
d 

20
22

 
Pa

rt 
of

 S
ou

th
 C

ou
nt

y 
 

P.
O

. B
ox

 6
50

, K
la

m
at

h,
 C

A 
95

54
8;

 R
ob

er
t N

ul
ph

, C
ha

irp
er

so
n 

rn
ul

ph
@

de
ln

or
te

.k
12

.c
a.

us
 ; 

(7
07

) 4
82

-9
29

5 
20

27
 

Sm
ith

 R
iv

er
 

M
SR

 &
 S

O
I A

pp
ro

ve
d 

1.
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

01
8

24
1 

W
. 1

st
 S

t, 
Sm

ith
 R

iv
er

, C
A 

95
56

7;
 J

ef
f B

ea
rd

 G
en

er
al

 
M

an
ag

er
 g

en
er

al
.m

an
ag

er
@

sr
w

at
er

.n
et

 O
: (

70
7)

 4
87

-5
38

1,
 

F:
 (7

07
) 4

87
-5

19
1 

ce
ll#

 8
18

-6
34

-5
66

3 
 

20
24

 

mailto:ewier@crescentcity.org
mailto:charliewick.1067@gmail.com
mailto:alan_porteous@msn.com
mailto:Thebaldheadedrealtor@charter.net
mailto:gcsd1@outlook.com
mailto:bigtunachef@netscape.net
mailto:plcrandall@hughes.net
mailto:hrcwater@gmail.com
mailto:klamathcsd@gmail.com
mailto:rnulph@delnorte.k12.ca.us
mailto:general.manager@srwater.net


 

A
ge

nc
y 

N
am

e 
SO

I &
 M

SR
 S

ta
tu

s 
C

on
ta

ct
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
N

ex
t U

pd
at

e 

FI
R

E 
D

IS
TR

IC
TS

 
C

re
sc

en
t C

ity
 F

ire
 &

 
R

es
cu

e 
M

SR
 &

 S
O

I A
pp

ro
ve

d 
20

22
 

C
ou

nt
yw

id
e 

Fi
re

 M
SR

 
25

5 
W

. W
as

hi
ng

to
n 

Bl
vd

, C
re

sc
en

t C
ity

 9
55

31
; K

ev
in

 C
ar

ey
 

Fi
re

 C
hi

ef
; (

70
7)

 4
64

 2
42

1;
 k

ca
re

y@
cr

es
ce

nt
ci

ty
.o

rg
  

20
27

 

Fo
rt

 D
ic

k 
FP

D 
M

SR
 &

 S
O

I A
pp

ro
ve

d 
20

22
 

C
ou

nt
yw

id
e 

Fi
re

 M
SR

 
P.

O
. B

ox
 3

69
, F

or
t D

ic
k,

 C
A 

95
53

8;
 R

an
dy

 C
ra

w
fo

rd
 

fo
rtd

ic
kf

ire
@

ao
l.c

om
 (7

07
) 4

87
-8

18
5;

 F
D

FD
81

@
ao

l.c
om

   
20

27
 

G
as

qu
et

 F
PD

 
M

SR
& 

SO
I A

pp
ro

ve
d 

20
22

 
C

ou
nt

yw
id

e 
Fi

re
 M

SR
 

P.
O

. B
ox

 8
5,

 G
as

qu
et

, C
A 

95
54

3;
 N

ic
k 

Ka
ra

no
po

ul
os

, (
70

7)
 

45
7-

33
32

; g
as

qu
et

vf
d@

ch
ar

te
r.n

et
  

20
27

 

K
la

m
at

h 
FP

D 
M

SR
 &

 S
O

I A
pp

ro
ve

d 
20

22
 

C
ou

nt
yw

id
e 

Fi
re

 M
SR

 
P.

O
. B

ox
 3

69
, K

la
m

at
h,

 C
A 

95
54

8;
 L

on
ni

e 
Le

vi
 F

ire
 C

hi
ef

 4
82

-
33

11
 lj

le
vi

@
ho

tm
ai

l.c
om

  
20

27
 

Sm
ith

 R
iv

er
 F

PD
 

M
SR

 &
 S

O
I A

pp
ro

ve
d 

20
22

 
C

ou
nt

yw
id

e 
Fi

re
 M

SR
 

P.
O

. B
ox

 1
87

, S
m

ith
 R

iv
er

, C
A 

95
56

7;
 F

ire
 C

hi
ef

 R
on

 S
im

ps
on

; 
(7

07
) 4

87
-5

62
1;

 s
rc

hi
ef

91
@

ya
ho

o.
co

m
  G

eo
ff 

An
til

l g
an

til
l@

 
ch

ar
te

r.n
et

 - 
sm

ith
riv

er
fir

ep
ro

te
ct

io
nd

is
tri

ct
@

sm
ith

riv
er

fir
e.

co
m

   
20

27
 

O
TH

ER
 D

IS
TR

IC
TS

 

C
ou

nt
y 

Se
rv

ic
e 

A
re

a 
(C

SA
) N

o.
1 

 
M

SR
 &

 S
O

I A
pp

ro
ve

d 
Ap

ril
 2

6 
20

21
 

98
1 

H
 S

tre
et

, S
ui

te
 1

10
, C

re
sc

en
t C

ity
, C

A 
95

53
1;

 H
ei

di
 

Ku
ns

ta
l, 

C
om

m
un

ity
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t D

ire
ct

or
, h

ku
ns

ta
l@

co
.d

el
-

no
rte

.c
a.

us
 , 

(7
07

) 4
64

- 7
25

4;
 R

os
an

na
 B

ow
er

, P
E,

 A
ss

is
ta

nt
 

C
ou

nt
y 

En
gi

ne
er

, r
bo

w
er

@
co

.d
el

-n
or

te
.c

a.
us

, (
70

7)
 4

64
-7

22
9 

20
26

 

C
re

sc
en

t C
ity

 H
ar

bo
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
M

SR
 &

 S
O

I A
pp

ro
ve

d 
Au

gu
st

 2
02

1 
10

1 
C

iti
ze

ns
 D

oc
k 

R
oa

d,
 C

re
sc

en
t C

ity
, C

A 
95

53
1;

 (7
07

) 4
64

-
61

74
; T

im
 P

et
ric

k,
 C

EO
 H

ar
bo

rm
as

te
r, 

tp
et

ric
k@

cc
ha

rb
or

.c
om

 
20

26
 

D
el

 N
or

te
 C

o.
 H

ea
lth

 
C

ar
e 

 
M

SR
 &

 S
O

I A
pp

ro
ve

d 
Ju

ly
 2

01
9 

P.
O

. B
ox

 2
06

4,
 C

re
sc

en
t C

ity
, C

A 
95

53
1;

  
D

or
is

 H
en

dr
ic

ks
, E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

Se
cr

et
ar

y;
 (7

07
) 4

64
-9

49
4;

 
dn

hc
d@

de
ln

or
te

he
al

th
.c

om
  

20
26

 

D
el

 N
or

te
 C

o.
 L

ib
ra

ry
  

M
SR

 &
 S

O
I A

pp
ro

ve
d 

Ju
ly

 2
01

9 

19
0 

Pr
ic

e 
M

al
l, 

C
re

sc
en

t C
ity

, C
A 

95
53

1;
 P

hy
llis

 G
oo

de
ll 

Li
br

ar
y 

M
an

ag
er

 (7
07

) 4
64

-9
79

3 
pg

oo
de

ill@
de

ln
or

te
co

un
ty

lib
ra

ry
.o

rg
   

20
25

 

D
el

 N
or

te
 R

es
ou

rc
e 

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Di

st
ric

t 
M

SR
 &

 S
O

I A
pp

ro
ve

d 
Ap

ril
 2

02
1 

24
1 

1s
t S

tre
et

, U
ni

t B
, S

m
ith

 R
iv

er
, C

A 
95

56
7;

  
(7

07
) 4

87
-7

63
0 

Br
ia

n 
Fe

rg
us

on
, B

oa
rd

 C
ha

ir;
 - 

de
ln

or
te

R
C

D
@

ya
ho

o.
co

m
  

20
26

 

Sm
ith

 R
iv

er
 C

em
et

er
y 

 
M

SR
 &

 S
O

I A
pp

ro
ve

d 
Ju

ne
 2

02
1 

P.
O

. B
ox

 7
62

, S
m

ith
 R

iv
er

, C
A 

95
56

7;
 J

oh
n 

R
ob

er
ts

 B
oa

rd
 

M
em

be
r a

t1
77

22
@

ho
tm

ai
l.c

om
  (

70
7)

 4
87

-6
70

5 
20

26
 

D
el

 N
or

te
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fa

irg
ro

un
ds

 
R

ec
re

at
io

n 
an

d 
Pa

rk
 

D
is

tri
ct

 F
or

m
ed

/ M
SR

 
Ap

pr
ov

ed
 J

un
e 

20
20

 

PO
 B

ox
 4

02
, C

re
sc

en
t C

ity
, C

A 
95

53
1;

 (7
07

) 4
64

-9
55

6,
 D

ou
g 

W
ak

ef
ie

ld
 B

oa
rd

 C
ha

ir 
dw

ak
ef

ie
ld

@
dn

cf
rp

d.
or

g 
, K

im
 F

lo
yd

, 
Fa

ir 
D

is
tri

ct
 G

en
er

al
 M

an
ag

er
/C

EO
 k

flo
yd

@
dn

fa
ir.

or
g 

 
20

25
 

 

mailto:kcarey@crescentcity.org
mailto:fortdickfire@aol.com
mailto:FDFD81@aol.com
mailto:gasquetvfd@charter.net
mailto:ljlevi@hotmail.com
mailto:srchief91@yahoo.com
mailto:gantill@charter.net
mailto:gantill@charter.net
mailto:smithriverfireprotectiondistrict@smithriverfire.com
mailto:hkunstal@co.del-norte.ca.us
mailto:hkunstal@co.del-norte.ca.us
mailto:rbower@co.del-norte.ca.us
mailto:tpetrick@ccharbor.com
mailto:dnhcd@delnortehealth.com
mailto:pgoodeill@delnortecountylibrary.org
mailto:delnorteRCD@yahoo.com
mailto:at17722@hotmail.com
mailto:dwakefield@dncfrpd.org
mailto:kfloyd@dnfair.org


DEL NORTE LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
670 9th Street, Suite 202 
Arcata, California 95521 

TEL (707) 825-9301 FAX (707)825-9181 
eo@delnortelafco.org 

AGENDA ITEM 4C 

MEETING DATE: March 24, 2025 

TO: Del Norte Local Agency Formation Commission 

FROM: George Williamson AICP, Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: Current and Future Applications 

Current (and recently completed) : 

Smith River FPD Annexation (recently completed) 
LAFCo Certificate of Completion for Smith River Fire Protection District (SRFPD) annexation 
filed with Del Norte County Recorder, SRFPD recently completed filing of map description & 
fee with State Board of Equalization.  

Klamath CSD Annexation – SOI Amendment (recently completed) 
Klamath CSD recently completed remaining Annexation & SOI Amendment conditions 
(easements) for Del Ponte Mutual Water Company. LAFCo filing Certificate of Completion & 
preparing State BOE filing package on CSD’s behalf. 

Del Norte County Fair Recreation & Park District MSR Determination Revisions Application 
The DNCFRPD formation included a condition (#3) creating a reserve sales tax fund until tax no 
longer being collected. The current DNCFRPD Municipal Services Reviews (MSR)  updated in 
2020, included a determination that a Post Sales Tax Fairgrounds Use Funding Program be 
prepared to support the proposed release of sales tax reserve funds. A determination 
reconsideration can be done at the same time as consideration of Condition # 3 removal. Both 
are contingent on a Post Sales Tax Fairgrounds Use Funding Program, prepared by the DNCFRPD 
& 41st DAA Board. The funding program would be based on an updated Del Norte County 
Fairgrounds Facility 5-year Capital Improvement Program and long term funding provisions.  Del 
Norte LAFCO staff currently reviewing a new 5-year Capital Improvement Plan & post 5 year 
funding to allocate unallocated funds for Commission’s determination review 

Future 

Del Norte Resource Conservation District SOI Amendment - 

Del Norte Resource Conservation District (RCD) Board voted to apply for an SOI Amendment,  
with LAFCo prepare updated MSR/SOI, then follow up with a separate annexation application). 
This will be funded out of a State Coastal Conservancy block grant that RCD received. 
Proposing expanding SOI to include entire County. The SOI Amendment Application is pending. 

HRC CSD Annexation – Jed Smith Homeowners Association (HOA) 

HRC CSD may be considering an annexation proposal, to extend water services to the HOA, 
within the Districts SOI.  This is contingent on a State Water Resources Control Board funded 
Preliminary Engineering Report (PER) for potential water system consolidation. If the 
application is filed, the CSD MSR to be updated as well once. Del Norte LAFCo staff expecting 
the draft PER, will provide comments & return to project engineer. 

mailto:eo@delnortelafco.org


 

 
 
 
 
March 14, 2025 
 
Del Norte LAFCO 
670 9th Street, Suite 5 
Arcata, CA 95521 

Subject: Addressing Member Concerns & Strengthening CALAFCO’s Future 

Dear Chair Short, Commissioners, and Executive Officer Williamson; 

We recognize that the current state of our organization is troubling to our valued members. 
We must, and will, do better regarding governance, transparency, and the overall direction 
of CALAFCO. As an organization committed to serving the best interests of LAFCos across 
the state, we take your concerns seriously and want to assure you that we are actively 
taking steps to address them.   

A Period of Transition & Rebuilding Trust 

Every organization evolves as new paths are taken, and CALAFCO is currently undergoing 
a phase of transition and internal reorganization. Our goal is to emerge stronger, more 
transparent, and better positioned to serve our membership. 

The Board of Directors and Regional Officers are fully engaged in this process, listening to 
feedback, and implementing meaningful changes that will reinforce trust and ensure the 
long-term viability of CALAFCO. We are committed to refocusing our mission, improving 
communication, and enhancing operational efficiency. 

Key Actions Underway 

To support this effort, we have assembled a highly qualified transition team: 

• José Henríquez (Interim Executive Director)  Currently the CALAFCO Central 
Region Officer and Executive Officer of Sacramento LAFCo, José is leading day-to-
day operations, managing fiscal and budgetary matters, and facilitating member 
engagement. 

• Pamela Miller (Governance Consultant & Organizational Development 
Specialist) – A former CALAFCO Executive Director, Pamela is conducting a full 
organizational assessment and comprehensive organizational structural assessment, 
reviewing policies and Bylaws, and assisting in the recruitment of a permanent 
Executive Director. She is also leading governance consultation and stakeholder 
outreach to ensure member voices are heard.  Pamela will also be facilitating the 
March 20th Board retreat. 

• Jeni Tickler (Administrative & Event Planning Specialist)  A former CALAFCO 
Administrative Assistant, Jeni is handling critical administrative functions, including 



 

 
2 

financial management, membership support, and coordination of upcoming events 
such as the staff workshop. 

Policy & Bylaws Updates 

On February 7, 2025, the Board approved and immediately implemented key policy changes 
developed in collaboration with member LAFCo staff. An updated policy manual reflecting 
these changes will be published soon. 

Additionally, a series of recommended changes to CALAFCO’s Bylaws have been approved 
for presentation and potential member adoption at the October 2025 Annual Business 
Meeting. These recommendations will be widely discussed in advance through member 
outreach efforts to ensure full transparency and active participation. 

Engaging Membership & Next Steps 

We are committed to listening to you, our membership, and including  you throughout this 
transition. To that end, we are: 

• Hosting regional focus groups and visioning sessions to engage members in shaping 
CALAFCO’s future. 

• Facilitating a focus group for staff at the upcoming staff workshop. 
• Providing ongoing updates and open forums for discussion. 

We understand that trust is built through action, and we are dedicated to making the 
necessary improvements to better serve you. Your voices matter, and we encourage you to 
reach out with any questions, concerns, or insights. 

For more information or to provide feedback, please contact: 

• José Henríquez: jhenriquez@calafco.org  
• Pamela Miller: pmiller@millermcg.com 
• Jeni Tickler: jtickler@calafco.org 

We appreciate your patience, engagement, and commitment to the future of CALAFCO. 
Together, we will strengthen our organization and reaffirm our mission to support LAFCos 
statewide. 

Sincerely, 
 
CALAFCO Board of Directors 

 
 
 
 


	2B 2 2025 Meeting Dates.pdf
	AGENDA ITEM 2B
	DISCUSSION

	4C Current and Future Applications.pdf
	AGENDA ITEM 4C




